
 1 

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL TOWN MEETING 

MARCH 1, 2010 
 

The legal voters of the Town of Ripton met at the Ripton Community House on Monday, March 1, 2010 

at 8:30 p.m. to act upon articles one through five of the 2010 Town Warning. Approximately 80 people 

attended. 
 

Moderator Joyce Dicianna called the meeting to order at 8:36 p.m.  

 
Article 1:  Will the Town vote the sum of $731,268 to pay General Fund and Road expenses for the 

ensuing year, and pay outstanding orders or obligations of the Town, with interest, the tax 

rate on the 2010 Grand List to be determined by the Selectboard, divided as follows:  
   Roads:      $256,400.00 

   General Fund:     $474,868.00 

   Total:      $731,268.00 

 
Article 1 was moved by Carol Ford and seconded by Marlene (Mar) Harrison. Discussion followed. 

 

 Selectboard Chair, Laureen (Laurie) Cox, reviewed the greatest expenses for 2010: bond payment and 
Community House painting. This is the first year a full bond amount for 2008 flood reconstruction 

expense is due, and is further explained in Article 4.  The exterior of the Community House is scheduled 

for painting this summer.  
 

Robert Wagner asked how the cost of painting the Community House compares with the $17,000 cost of 

painting the School. Ms. Cox explained that the estimate used in the Town budget was not compared with 

the School’s painting costs. Bill Ford pointed out the many differences between the two buildings such as 
age, siding material, and height, and added that the current economy is great for hiring contractors and 

competitive bids are expected. Bill Pierce, Facilities Coordinator, will solicit bids for the Town, and until 

bids are received the cost is roughly estimated.  
 

Charles Billings asked if any of the $275,000 bond fund amount is leftover. Laurie Cox answered, yes, 

and is addressed by Article 4.  

 
Michael Seligmann inquired why the cost of legal services is again twice the yearly budgeted amount. 

Though several legal issues may face the town in a year, Ms Cox cited an ongoing issue and appeals 

relative to the Junk Ordinance, and a commitment to enforcing Town ordinances, as reasons.  
 

Discussion turned to roads. Bryan Alexander questioned if a Better Backroads Program grant is approved. 

Ronald Wimett responded that we will probably get this $10,000 grant and pay its $2,500 match, though 
the money may not appear until next year. No work will begin until the grant is approved.  Mr. Wimett 

described an old agreement between the Town and USFS for $1,000 annually for road work. When shown 

documentation about this, the USFS agreed to fund work on the Goshen Road, Steam Mill Road, and a 

Forest Road off of Brooks Road, not off the Goshen Road as stated on page 9 of Town Report. Ms. Cox 
added that on a per capita basis Ripton may be a “gold town” in TARP (Troubled Asset Relief Program) 

funds with funding for the first bridge on the Goshen Road, flood mitigation, and Route 125 paving. 

Rebecca Purdum asked if repair of the road surface on Natural Turnpike is included. Mr. Wimett 
explained it is not, and that the road’s recent bumpiness is seasonal. The road will be posted for the 

muddy months. Marlene Harrison asked what is wrong with the bridge on the Goshen Road and 

commented that the road surface is not great.  Ms. Cox and Mr. Wimett described scouring of supports 
beneath the bridge, and frequent need for fill. 

 

The Moderator called the question. Article 1 was adopted by unanimous voice vote. 



 2 

Article 2: Will the Town vote the sum of $23,000 to Ripton Fire and Rescue to help pay Fire 

Department and First Response expenses for the year?   
 

Article 2 was moved by Barbara King and seconded by Joyce Henderson. 

 

Chief Erik Eriksen asked for questions, and explained that the budget includes $2,700 for a security 
system. Last summer windows were broken and the parking lot needed grading because of people doing 

donuts in the parking area, and this system is to prevent such vandalism. He stated the need for volunteers 

in all areas, that there are currently only 2 medical people, but there are many things to be done. Mar 
Harrison suggested a sign-up sheet, and Chief Eriksen directed people to see Roland McGlashan. Edmund 

(Ed) Sullivan mentioned training is available. Rob Wagner spoke about an upcoming class he is taking 

despite fear of fires and smoke. He commented that dealing with fire is more process than bravado; that 
many hands are needed at the station, and the terrifying part is a very small part of the work involved. 

Marty Kulczyk cited the need for help with traffic control, cleaning, and the opportunities – such as 

driving antiques.  

 
Charles Billings stated that insurance on homes in Ripton is high due to a lack of hydrants and asked if 

there are new procedures or equipment to achieve a better fire rating. Erik Eriksen thought not, unless we 

had another department closer than Middlebury, and commented on our mutual aid agreements with 
Salisbury, Hancock, and Middlebury. He added that water towers and underground tanks may help, and 

will get back to Mr. Billings about whether or not they would change rates. Mar Harrison asked about 

ponds, and was told they help. Jay Harrington suggested sprinkler systems. 
 

Joyce Henderson asked for explanation of the vehicle replacement fund payments. Laurie Cox explained 

the fund jump-started with a large payment its first year and that subsequently the payment is split with 

the Major Project Fund. Ms. Cox asked if the Department is still using its old vehicles.  Erik Eriksen 
responded yes, but that purchase of an ambulance from the Brandon Rescue Squad is expected, and he is 

still looking for a mini-pumper.  

 
Millard (Mac) Cox asked if we get Ripton when we call 911. Erik Eriksen responded that a 911 call made 

here is first directed to Porter Hospital dispatch, next Ripton first-response is notified. He noted there can 

be a lag time and gave an example of a 7-minute gap between the ambulance dispatch and the call to 

Ripton.  Mr. Eriksen confirmed to call 911 when we want Ripton to respond.  
 

The Moderator called the question. Article 2 was adopted by unanimous voice vote. 

 

 

Article 3: Will the Town have current property taxes collected by the Treasurer, with a tax due date 

of Thursday, November 4, 2010? 
 

Article 3 was moved by Richard Ruane and seconded by Erik Eriksen. 

 

Bonnie DeGray asked why delinquent tax payers are listed in Town Report this year, while they had not 
been in the last few Town Reports. Laurie Cox explained that the Selectboard decided to include the list 

because it was growing, and its inclusion seemed to help in the past. The goal is not to make people feel 

bad, but to help people. It only burdens homeowners if the delinquent amount builds.  
 

The Moderator called the question. Article 3 was adopted by unanimous voice vote. 

 
 



 3 

Article 4: Will the Town vote to have the Treasurer establish an escrow account with $20,000.00 

that was bonded in excess of the amount needed to repay the road repair loans for the 
2008 flood, said amount to be used to reduce the bond payments for the first five years by 

$4,000.00 per year? 

 

Article 4 was moved by Ed Sullivan and seconded by Erik Eriksen. 
 

Ms. Cox explained that when the Board determined the bond amount, actual costs, reimbursement, and 

payments from private property owners that reduced the amount needed were not known.  The bond, 
which was $20,000 greater than needed after payments were received, may not be paid ahead of time. 

This Article is to permit that we set aside the excess borrowed and use $4,000 of it per year for five years 

to mitigate the payment burden, and put the money back towards that for which it was borrowed.  
 

The Moderator called the question. Article 4 was adopted by unanimous voice vote. 

 

 
Article 5: Any other business proper to come before this meeting.  

 

Article 5 was moved by Carol Ford and seconded by Ed Sullivan.  
 

a. Bill Ford Recognition: Laurie Cox recognized Bill Ford’s probable record 23 ½ years of service 

as Chair of the Ripton Selectboard. Mr. Ford stepped down from the Board September 1, 2009. 
He was presented with a rocking chair with a plaque, and the Meeting responded with applause. 

Mr. Ford thanked everyone for their support, and complemented the meeting as a great town with 

good municipal officials. “It works,” he said.  

 
b. Warren King Recognition: Ms. Cox asked those pinch-hitting for Warren King, who was 

absent, to speak, and recognized his 20 years of service as Recycling Coordinator. Michael 

Seligmann asked for a straw vote to rename the Recycling/Town Shed the Kingdome. Laurie Cox 
said that if the sign is made, it’ll be hung.  

 

c. Town Plan: Alison Joseph Dickinson reported that the Town Plan is updated every five years, 

and the Planning Commission’s current revision is nearly done. Maps were shown to illustrate 
recommendations for future zoning changes such as from a 25-acre to 10-acre district at the east 

of Maiden Lane to Reichert Lane; from a 10-acre to a 5-acre district on the west side of the 

Lincoln Road near the School; and from a 10-acre to a 25-acre district at the Wagon Wheel trail, 
and some new Conservation District areas. Two public hearings, one by the Planning 

Commission and one by the Selectboard, will be held before the plan is complete. The Town Plan 

proposes changes to guide future zoning decisions. Changes to zoning regulations are a different 
process and are not currently underway.  

 

d. REAP and Home Energy (Ripton Energy Alternatives Program): Mac Cox described this fuel 

support program for Ripton residents. Eligibility for oil, propane, or firewood delivery is 
determined through HOPE (formerly ACCAG, in Middlebury), though questions may be directed 

to Mac. Visits for home energy improvements and information about energy audits and efficiency 

rebates are available for all residents by contacting Warren King at 388-4082. 
 

e. Town issues/info/news: Andrea Chesman remarked upon the trend of increasingly tame Town 

Meetings, and the problem of keeping the public aware of issues throughout the year. She 
wondered if Selectboard meeting minutes could be posted electronically to allow more 

convenient reading than at the bulletin board in the Ripton Country Store. Laurie Cox did not see 



 4 

any reason not to post the Minutes online. Joyce Dicianna added that citizens may bring items to 

be added to the Town Meeting agenda and warning.  
 

f. Route 125: Though looking forward to a smoother Route 125 after the 2010 repaving project is 

complete, Bill McKibben asked if anything may be done to slow truck traffic. Laurie Cox 

reported on the Selectboard’s attempts to address this issue, and the effectiveness of direct citizen 
input in achieving results. Bill Ford and Ron Wimett added detail about online mapping and the 

effectiveness of signs. Mar Harrison asked about log trucks and was told by the assembly that 

those would stay.  
 

g. Thanks for road maintenance: Marty Kulczyk recognized and thanked all those who worked on 

and cleared the roads, especially as early in the morning as they do. 
 

h. Community House use in winter: Eric Warren initiated discussion of winter use of the 

Community House, noting the importance of the building to the community.  Laurie Cox 

responded that the building is extremely expensive to heat, and cited ongoing furnace problems 
and freezing pipes. Ron Wimett explained that the pipes are drained and the heat is kept at a low 

temperature to protect the paint. He noted the large, single-pane glass windows as a problem and 

that the Board looked into getting drapes, but it all boils down to money. The possibility of grants 
was discussed with Mac Cox speaking in favor, and Michael Seligmann asking if an energy audit 

has been done. The Board reported that an audit was done in the 1980’s, and Bill Ford added that 

the walls were insulated then. Charles Billings estimated window replacement at $30-50,000. 
Exterior glazing and drapes were further discussed. Andrea Chesman asked if the cost per day of 

additional expense of opening the building could be calculated and a renter pay that amount. 

Laurie Cox and Ron Wimett thought this possible, and that they would err on the high side. Ross 

Elliot asked if anyone looked into radiant heat, and suggested federal funding such as currently 
available for schools. Ms. Cox mentioned that grants had been sought for energy projects and that 

this building is less likely than a school to win a grant award. Erik Warren stated his concern that 

the Ripton Community Coffee House is not able to be here; an important aspect of the community 
for him is to come out and be here at the Community House. Laurie Cox questioned if it is best to 

push up the heat for one night in an old building. Ross Elliot added that it is a community house. 

Ms. Cox said the Board does its best to make responsible decisions, but that if people want to 

spend the money, the Board could think about this.  Bill Pierce stated that the building is only 
closed for two months. Charles Billings suggested a meter on the furnace to see what the cost of 

turning it up is, and allowing the Coffee House to pay the difference. Alison Joseph asked what 

the thermostat setting is when the building is closed. Bill Pierce answered 50-55 degrees. Joyce 
Dicianna commented on the great amount of interest in this topic, and that like minds could work 

together to look into it. Laurie Cox announced that renters now must provide insurance for private 

use. She added that this may make the building less usable and was not the Board’s choice but is 
due to the Town’s insurer, VLCT. Charles Billings asked if renters may get a rider on their 

homeowner’s policy for coverage, and for clarification about community vs. private use, and the 

Coffee House. Ms. Cox answered that her insurer will issue coverage though she did not propose 

all types of rental possibilities, and that the Coffee House is a quasi-branch of Town business and 
is covered under its rental agreement with the Town. Ross Elliot asked if other insurance 

companies were considered. Laurie Cox said yes, and that all towns are dealing with this. Mr. 

Elliot inquired about the alcohol policy. Ms. Cox responded that alcohol is prohibited outside the 
building, per the Town’s Open Container Ordinance, but is allowed inside if approved by the 

Selectboard. Rob Wagner invited all to a potluck he is hosting at the Community House on April 

10
th
, and said having insurance coverage was an easy process.  

 



 5 

The Moderator asked if there was any more business. There was not. Movement to adjourn was made by 

Erik Eriksen and seconded by Richard Ruane. With a unanimous voice vote, Town Meeting of March 1, 
2010 adjourned at 9:45 p.m.  

  

Joyce Dicianna announced that the meeting would reconvene at 7:00 a.m. Tuesday, March 2, 2010 at the 

Town Offices to vote by Australian ballot on election of Town officers and Articles 1-2 of the 2010 Town 
of Ripton Warning.  

 

 
 

Joyce Dicianna, Town Moderator  Sally Hoyler, Town Clerk 

 
 

 

Ripton Selectboard 

 
 

 

Laurie Cox, Chair 
 

 

 
Ronald Wimett 

 

 

 
Richard Collitt 
 


